
 

Environmental Advisory                                Lower Saucon Township                                  February 12, 2013 

Council                                                                          Minutes                                                           7:00 PM 

 

 

I. OPENING 

 

CALL TO ORDER:  The Environmental Advisory Council meeting of Lower Saucon Township was 

called to order on Tuesday, February 12, 2013 at 7:00 PM, at 3700 Old Philadelphia Pike, Bethlehem, PA, 

with Sandra Yerger, Chairman, presiding.   

   

 ROLL CALL:   
 Members:  Sandra Yerger, Chairman; Ted Beardsley, Hazen Hijazi, Dru Germanoski, Allan Johnson;  

Absent: Tom Maxfield, Vice Chairman, Laura Ray, Members; and Glenn Kaye, Associate Member   

Planner: – Absent (not needed); Hellertown Liaison: Absent: Terry Boos; Jr. Council Member:  Vacant.   

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

II. OPEN SPACE SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

A. PROPERTY UPDATES 

 

1. RICHARD MARSON UPDATE – 2383 WASSERGASS ROAD 

 

Mr. Beardsley said he doesn’t know what’s happening with Mr. Marson.  He accepted the 

offer.  He was talking to our Attorney about the terms. He had hired his own Attorney to 

review things, but he doesn’t know what happened since.  Mr. Beardsley will give Terry 

Clemons a call to see what’s going on.   

 

Mr. Beardsley said he did speak to Charlie Martin and the offer was $160,000.00 and Mr. 

Martin wants $175,000.00.  He needs the extra money to pay his taxes.  He’s going to have 

a capital gain.  Mrs. Yerger said we can’t pay more than the appraised value.  Mr. 

Beardsley said he’d suggest we have the Attorney’s talk to him.  He will talk to Terry 

Clemons about this also.  Mrs. Yerger said she knows he called Laura Baird, but she 

doesn’t know what they talked about.  She doesn’t know unless he wants to get it re-

appraised and that’s not going to be to his advantage.   

 

2. PROPERTIES FOR SALE IN LOWER SAUCON TOWNSHIP 

 

Mrs. Yerger said there are two properties that have come up for sale. One is a cornfield 

now that is across the school.  She thought the school had written a right of refusal on that 

property.  She thought they were looking at that as an expansion if they would need it at 

some point to expand the campus.  Mr. Beardsley said they should look at it to see how it 

would tie in with the park and the school.  Mrs. Yerger said it’s in very close proximity to 

the park.  She’s going to ask Chris Garges to pull it up on a bigger GIS so we can get an 

aerial and a better perspective on it and bring it back next month. She doesn’t know if it 

actually abuts or not.  It goes back, but she doesn’t know how far back.  She thinks there 

might be another piece running perpendicular to it.   

 

Mr. Beardsley said this other property is listed also with a realtor.  Those properties, he 

doesn’t know how interested the owners would be in doing a conservation easement.  They 

usually want as much out of the property as they can get.  He will talk to them.  Mrs. 

Yerger said we can ask them if they are interested or would consider it.   

 

III. NEW BUSINESS – None 

 

IV. DEVELOPER ITEMS – None 



Environmental Advisory Council 

February 12, 2013 

 

Page 2 of 7 

V. UPDATES/REPORTS 
 

A. UPDATE FROM SANDY YERGER ON PRESCRIPTION DRUG COLLECTION 

PROGRAM 

 

Mrs. Yerger said there are quite a few Townships around here that now have a drop box for 

unwanted prescription drugs so you aren’t flushing them into the water system, so you are not 

contaminating.  We asked Jack Cahalan to look into it and they are available, but there is a cost 

associated with it.  They do have to be emptied by the Police, so the Police Department would have 

to apply for the grant, but Cathy Gorman, our Finance Director would do it on behalf for them.  

She was looking into that.  She’ll check with Jack again to see if there’s any other progress.  Ms. 

Palik said there is a drop-off drug event the day we are having our recycling event here at the 

Township.  Mrs. Yerger said most Townships do one or two days a year, but this would be that 

people could get rid of them anytime during the year.  Springfield Township has one, and that’s 

where she saw one and they work well.   

 

B. ADOPT-A-ROAD CLEAN-UP – PICK A DATE IN THE SPRING 

 

Mrs. Yerger said we need to pick a spring date.  The EAC members picked Saturday, April 13, 

2013 starting at 9:00 am.  She said it will not take a long time to clean-up the road. 

  

C. UPDATE FROM TOM MAXFIELD FOR A RAIN BARREL WORKSHOP DATE 

 

Tabled – will be on next agenda. 

 

D. UPDATE FROM TOM MAXFIELD ON NATIVE PLANT GARDEN ENHANCEMENTS 

 

Tabled – will be on next agenda. 

 

E. SPRING RECYCLING EVENT WITH FREECYCLE – APRIL 27, 2013 

 

Mrs. Yerger said on April 27, 2013 we are doing the spring recycling event with FreeCycle.  We 

have a paper and a flyer on it in our packets.  It will be 9:00 am to noon.  We are going to advertise 

it on our website, the PATCH, the Valley Voice.  Someone needs to talk to Saucon Valley School 

District and Hellertown Borough.  It’s open to anyone.  EAC asked Leslie Huhn to take it to the 

Saucon Valley Partnership.  Last time there was a back-up on Old Philadelphia Pike, Tom Dittmar 

would like the cars to go in down by the Township Park sign and weave in and out.  They will also 

do refrigerators, freezers, like last time.  We’re going to need help that down. She’s sure the 

Township will have two from the Public Works Department along with a forklift.  Mr. Beardsley 

said if we have people come in the lower driveway, and when they go through the building there 

will be a conflict getting out.  Mr. Hijazi said it depends how fast you can move them in the front.  

Mr. Johnson said the back-up was on the road and some lady was coming the other way and no one 

let her in so the traffic got backed up.  Mr. Beardsley said if we want to do that, we can as they can 

come around and cross the line of traffic and have someone there to stop them and let the other 

people go through.  Mrs. Yerger said that’s good idea.  We’ll have to have someone there to direct 

the traffic.  We never had that many as it was a necessity, but this time we should have it.    Mr. 

Beardsley said we’ll try it and see what happens.  Last time there was a special section with a 

dumpster for the refrigerators and air conditioners.  That all worked out. 

 

F. PICK A DATE FOR NATIVE PLANT SALE IN JUNE 

 

Mrs. Yerger said she hasn’t connected yet with Terry Boos.  He will be helping her pick up the 

plants.  We’ll plan for June because of the availability and attractiveness of the plants. 

 



Environmental Advisory Council 

February 12, 2013 

 

Page 3 of 7 

G. REPORT FROM DRU GERMANOSKI ON PROJECTS FROM STUDENTS OF JOHN 

WILSON 

 

Mr. Germanoski said we talked about two projects.  One was getting someone to take the project 

that one student did to delineate septic systems on-lot versus sewage connections and groundwater 

wells, so they are in limbo with that right now.  The other one, we are still in limbo, as he was on 

sabbatical last semester.  John Wilson was pretty excited for next fall to get a student to do the 

hydro geology surface water report with the combination of the GIS.  He’ll have a big group of 

people in hydro, so he and John will work together to try to recruit someone to do that.  They are 

both excited about the project.  Mrs. Yerger said that information will be very valuable to the 

Township.  Mr. Germanoski said it’s perfect for their students as a lot of times they are doing 

things that aren’t geo-focused and they are looking for things with a good geology focus.  This is 

well constrained and doable.   

 

H. UPDATE FROM TOM MAXFIELD ON ENVIRONMENTAL EDUCATION PROGRAM 

 

Tabled – will be on next agenda. 

 

I. UPDATE FROM SANDY YERGER ON “A PROPERTY OWNER’S GUIDE TO LAND 

CONSERVATION BROCHURE” 

 

Mrs. Yerger said she talked to Jack Cahalan about that.  She asked him as we either have to bring 

in Terry Clemons or Laura Baird to do this because we have to make sure the tax information on it 

is current as what we have now in our brochure is outdated for the landowners.  We need to make 

sure all of that is accurate because it’s a consulting fee and since it’s a fee for service type thing, he 

needs to take it to Council.  He is going to do that and then hopefully by next month, we’ll have 

permission for that.  It won’t take a lot.  The information is readily available but she is not qualified 

to do that.  We need someone with expertise to verify that the information is accurate.  The last 

thing we want to do is put out bad tax information on land preservation.  

 

VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

A. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF JANUARY 8, 2013 MINUTES 

 

Mr. Hijazi said page 2, line 24, it should read “Mr. Hijazi thought he was under the impression if 

we do it at our location, they wanted to have a forklift here. 

 

MOTION BY: Mr. Beardsley moved for approval of the January 8, 2013 minutes, with corrections. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Hijazi 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 (Mr. Maxfield & Ms. Ray – Absent) 

 

VII. OLD/MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS – None 

 

VIII. TERRY BOOS – HELLERTOWN REPRESENTATIVE – REPORT – Absent 

  

IX. NON-AGENDA ITEMS – None 

 

X. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 Ms. Donna Louder asked what the addresses were for the properties for sale?  Mrs. Yerger said the 

one is across from the high school.  She asked about Charlie Martin’s?  Mrs. Yerger said that one 

we already had an appraisal on and is in the works.  That’s over on Martin’s Lane.  Mr. Johnson 

said it’s not a sale, it’s a conservation easement.  It’s a working farm.  Ms. Louder said she’s just 

curious this easement, is it something the Township is going to have to pay money for?  Mrs. 

Yerger said it was already approved by Council.  They approved the appraisal.  They have not 



Environmental Advisory Council 

February 12, 2013 

 

Page 4 of 7 

negotiated the purchase of it for a conservation easement.  It would be done by the appraised value.  

It’s done by appraisers, and by law, we cannot exceed the appraised value of the property.  It would 

be the purchase of the development rights.  Ms. Louder said how much property is it?  Mr. 

Beardsley said he thinks it’s around 25 acres.  Mrs. Yerger said the farm itself is bigger, but that’s 

the amount of acreage roughly that he wants to put in conservation easements.  You don’t pay for 

the buildings, the house, you strictly pay for conserving the land.   

 

 Mr. Gene Boyer said what part of the land is it that the 25 acres is out of his total?  Is it out on the 

road, is it by a creek?  Mr. Beardsley said it’s at the top of the mountain, the hill, and is some of it 

is open and some of it is wooded.  It’s pasture.  Some farmer comes and cuts hay at the property 

and that would continue.  If it were to be developed sometime in the future, they would be able to 

put five or six houses there on two-acre lots.  This is an old project, and he doesn’t remember the 

details off-hand.  This would prevent that development and would preserve the agricultural use of 

the property.  It doesn’t have much frontage.   

 

Mr. Boyer said what road is it on?  Mr. Johnson said it’s on Silver Creek Road, not Martin’s Lane, 

like was stated earlier, and is owned by Charles Martin.  Mrs. Yerger said you can look at back 

minutes as it was talked about a couple of years ago.  It was discussed here multiple times and also 

at Council as Council had to authorize the appraisal to get done.   

 

Mr. Boyer said why did it take so long?  Mr. Beardsley said we dropped the ball once and then he 

dropped the ball once is what it comes down to.  Mrs. Yerger said the landowner is not always 

happy with the appraisal.   

 

Mr. Boyer said did we approach him or did he approach us? Mrs. Yerger said he approached us.  

Mr. Boyer said once it’s in a conservation easement, what does that do other than prevent building 

of houses?  Mrs. Yerger said it keeps it as a farm, raw land.  There are limitations.  The 

conservation easement is negotiated on what you can and what you can’t do on that property from 

that point on.  Mr. Boyer said does it allow the people of the Township to use it for any reason?  

Mr. Beardsley said sometimes, not always.  Mrs. Yerger said that again depends on the 

negotiations of a given easement with a property owner.   

 

Mr. Boyer said he looked at a conservation easement that was done back years by John Noble, and 

there was a organization that was supposedly monitoring that.  Mrs. Yerger said the easement is 

held by the Wildlands Conservancy and the Township.  Mr. Boyer said the same thing here?  Mrs. 

Yerger said yes, it would be held by multiple entities.  Mr. Beardsley said it might not be held by 

Wildlands, but usually when we do a conservation easement, we partner with a non-profit 

organization that is familiar with it and it’s their purpose to help preserve open space.  The 

easement is a three-way thing between the property owner, the Township and the conservation 

organization.   

 

Mr. Boyer said that particular conservation, do the people have the right to use the creek for fishing 

and things?  Mrs. Yerger said yes.  Mr. Boyer said he doesn’t know how to get to it as it seemed it 

was isolated along the creek and in through someone’s driveway.  Mr. Johnson said there’s a road 

there called Coal Yard Road which is a dirt road, but he thinks it’s a public road.  There’s a dirt 

path.  It’s not paved.  It’s a tractor path that goes up into the property and from there you have to 

walk down to the creek.  Mr. Hijazi said he thinks the concern is for anyone to access that property, 

they would not be going on anybody’s personal property or driveway.  It has access.  Mr. Johnson 

said for that particular one, he thinks they have to ask for permission.  There are a couple of Boy 

Scouts or someone who wanted to go fishing there and they wrote us an email a couple of years 

ago, and he had to get permission from the owner and the owner said sure, you can go fishing.  

When you give a conservation easement, you don’t give up ownership of the property.   

 



Environmental Advisory Council 

February 12, 2013 

 

Page 5 of 7 

Mr. Hijazi said there are two issues here.  One is getting permission to access the property, and the 

other question is, is it accessible for the public road without going on anybody’s property?  Mr. 

Beardsley said there’s no formal parking there.  It’s not a park.  It’s open space that’s owned by 

these people and they guaranteed us it will stay open by putting a conservation easement on it and 

they have allowed public access as they said there could be fishing, and there may be some 

restrictions that he doesn’t recall that you have to call the Township if you want to access the 

property.  Mr. Johnson said you can’t drive to the stream, you have to park along the dirt road call 

Coal Yard Road and walk from there, over the property that’s in the conservation easement and 

then go down to the stream.  Mr. Boyer said when he looked into this, how does somebody know 

that’s even existing and available, and now you are saying there’s even a restriction that you have 

to get the landowner.  He knows now that he looked into it that there’s fishing available, but he 

doesn’t remember seeing in there to call the owner to get permission to fish because it’s a 

conservation easement.   

 

Mr. Johnson said did you read the whole conservation easement?  Mr. Boyer said he just said he 

didn’t.  Mr. Johnson said that’s where all the ands, ifs and buts are.  We don’t remember everything 

that is in there.  Mr. Hijazi said the specifics for each conservation easement access would be in the 

agreement for that specific property. The bigger question is does the public know about the 

conservation easement availability?  Mrs. Yerger said you’d have to come into the Township like 

any development, it’s public record.  Mr. Hijazi said maybe we can put it on our web page that 

these are the properties that have been preserved in LST.  Ms. Louder said in the newsletter?  Mrs. 

Yerger said she has no problem putting them in the newsletter.  The last one we preserved we put 

in the newsletter.  She’s not sure exactly what information you want - the whole document 

easement for each property?  Mr. Hijazi said if somebody is not involved too much with the 

Township, and what’s going on, and one day he says what properties have been preserved in LST?  

Mrs. Yerger said you want a running list?  Mr. Hijazi said do we have three properties, four 

properties, what are their addresses?  He thinks we put those properties in one place, maybe on our 

web page, somebody browsing the Township’s webpage may see the properties that are preserved 

in LST, and here are their addresses.  For specifics how to access each one of them, what are the 

specific legal requirements to get to it or who can be involved with it, we have to look at the 

specific agreement on that property.  What properties have been preserved so far?  Mrs. Yerger 

said she thinks we had a map at one time that actually showed the locations.  Chris Garges can 

pinpoint them with GIS.  We’ve had maps made.  Mr. Boyer said that’s a good point if you can put 

the properties that are there and preserved by the conservation easements and putting on the 

website if there is some availability, not necessarily the agreement, but that one runs all along the 

creek, so a fisherman could know it’s available for fishing.  In there, make specifics that they might 

have to come to the Township to get the details of what the availability.  Put a one-liner in there 

that it’s not for everybody to walk on.  He doesn’t know how you would find it as there aren’t any 

signs let alone it’s hard to find on the maps even how to get there.  Mr. Germanoski said it would 

be important to have some sort of notification that these aren’t public lands or park lands but in 

some cases they are and there is limited accessibility and a disclaimer.  Mrs. Yerger said we have 

to be very careful with some of the conservation easements.  For example, like Laura Ray’s 

property was not done with Township funding, it was done with DCNR and County funding so 

really the Township doesn’t play into that at all. It was done before we even had any EIT.  Lifting 

all the properties that are preserved doesn’t necessarily mean they were using Township dollars.  

Mr. Boyer said it’s not that they were using Township dollars; they are in the Township being 

preserved as property.  Mr. Beardsley said the only things we can list are the ones we spent money 

on.  If private individuals have decided to put a conservation easement on their property and they 

don’t want public access, they are entitled to do that.   

 

Mr. Boyer said Noble, there were three parties.  He went through the research in there and his other 

question is that the conservation group, Wildlands Conservancy actually did a walk-through within 

the last twelve months and found there were vines and other things that needed to be taken care on 

that property to preserve the trees and so forth.  Who follows up on those kinds of things?  Mrs. 



Environmental Advisory Council 

February 12, 2013 

 

Page 6 of 7 

Yerger said we got the report and asked them to re-do the report and never got it back again.  Mr. 

Johnson said we don’t have control.  It’s up to the owner.  These are suggestions.  We have no 

control over making the owner do anything, except if he’d want to drive in there with a bulldozer, 

he can’t do drastic things like that.  Mr. Beardsley said they are saying in order to preserving the 

trees, these vines should be taken down.  Whether the property owner is going to spend the money 

or not, we don’t know.  Whether the property loses its conservation value, he kind of doubts it.   

Mr. Boyer said we paid for it.  Mr. Johnson said we really didn’t pay for the trees.  We paid for his 

development rights - the rights to put a house on there.  That’s what we paid for.  By preventing 

houses to be put on the land, the trees can grow the natural state.  That’s the conservation part of it.  

Mr. Beardsley said if the vines are part of that succession, that’s the way it is.  The report you saw 

was making a suggestion to the property owner how he could improve the property or maintain it 

better than it is being maintained.  Mrs. Yerger said there are pros and cons about vines.  There are 

those that will tell you vines are detrimental to a forest and there are naturalists who will tell you 

that they are part of the natural progression of a forest so that they are not detrimental and provide 

other benefits to wildlife.  Mr. Boyer said those people who made it a detrimental instead of a 

benefit and if you don’t believe in them, then you should get another group in there.  They didn’t 

put it in there to give you two choices.  Mr. Johnson said it is what’s in the legal documents.  The 

legal document got ten pages of lawyer talk and if that’s not in the document, then no one can 

make the man do anything.  If we didn’t say anything about the vines, then we can’t do anything. 

Mr. Beardsley said he’s saying something different.  He’s saying if the people that we have doing 

the inspections are going to be this picky, maybe we ought to get someone who won’t be.  Mr. 

Johnson said the people that are doing the inspections are environmentalists.  They know about 

trees and plants and things like that and he was making a suggestion that you’d better take care of 

them, but it’s up to the property owner whether or not he wants to take care of this. Mrs. Yerger 

said she has two friends, two naturalists.  One is the gentleman who wrote that report.  He doesn’t 

like vines.  He thinks they are bad for trees. She can go up to the Jacobsburg Environmental Center 

and talk to a gentleman who works for the Department of Conservation and Natural Resources and 

he will tell you the exact opposite.  They are both environmentalists and they both care about the 

land, but they have different opinions.  There are a lot of naturalists that feel grapevines are 

detrimental to the trees and they are to some extent.  Other naturalists feel that the benefit to the 

wildlife with a grapevine outweighs the detriment to the trees with the grapevines.  Mr. Boyer said 

in the report it looked like it was a detriment that somebody should be doing something about it or 

at least notifying them.  Mrs. Yerger said they get a copy of the report.  Mr. Boyer said he was 

wondering if anybody did anything or you just get this report and it says this is detrimental, and 

then it’s forgotten about.  Mrs. Yerger said the landowner gets a copy.  The organizations get a 

copy and the Township gets a copy.  The landowner is made aware of it.  Mr. Beardsley said the 

purpose of the inspection isn’t just the trees and the vines and those kinds of things.  Is anyone 

putting a foundation in?  Is somebody putting a gravel road in?    

 

Mr. Boyer said also in the reports was little pieces of forts and other things in there that shouldn’t 

have been in there.  Mr. Beardsley said the kids play in there.  If we get rid of those, we’re ruining 

somebody’s recreation.   

 

Mr. Germanoski said there are limits to our jurisdiction.  The agreement is to keep it open space, 

inspect it to make sure they aren’t violating the agreement for development.  Mrs. Yerger said they 

can make recommendations. We can provide them with educational as far as the best management 

practices.  Mr. Johnson said whose responsibility is it to notify them?  It’s Wildlands. Mrs. Yerger 

said as far as she knows, the landowner got a copy of the report.   

 

Ms. Louder said what is the life of this preservation?  Mrs. Yerger said it runs with the land.  The 

property owner retains ownership of the land, and they have the right to sell it, but the easement 

stays with the property.  It’s in perpetuity as long as the courts uphold them.  It runs with the land 

forever.  Ms. Louder said she had an uncle who preserved his land for 150 years and that land can 

only be farmed.  It’s hundreds of acres.  After that expires, the owner of the property has the option 



Environmental Advisory Council 

February 12, 2013 

 

Page 7 of 7 

to redo it or something.  He just passed, but his family is still there.  Mrs. Yerger said most of them 

are written with the expectation that it runs with the land and it’s in perpetuity.  There are 

exceptions to everything.   

 

Mr. Johnson said the County has a different setup than we do for easements.  The County has 

farmland easements and they also have natural conservation.  Mrs. Yerger said the majority of it is 

for farmland preservation.  That’s their main goal.  There is a clause in farmland preservation that 

will tell you that it is in perpetuity as long as the use is consistent with the land around it and that’s 

how sometimes farmland preservation is broken when it’s a county easement.  The difference in 

the easements is the language, if it’s a farm, the goal is to preserve it as a farm.  Whether it’s 

natural resources, preserve the natural resources.  Mr. Johnson said in one case we have trees and 

where animals live and in the other we have farmland that’s valuable for growing food.  They are 

both valuable but have different values.  Mr. Boyer said the easement has the right for people to 

fish, so to him, when he read that, he thought Boy Scouts or other people as it said educational 

purposes as well as fishing that they could use that along the river.   Mrs. Yerger said she believes 

they’ve allowed that.  Mr. Beardsley said if he remembers the discussion way back, they would 

agree to allow those Boy Scouts or the Audubon Society or someone like that to use the property.   

 

Mr. Boyer said his whole thing was he’s an ignorant resident and the fact that he didn’t even know 

it existed is number one, and then how available was that known other than the fact that you folks 

sitting at a meeting and lawyers and agreements.  If it’s not on the website, how does someone 

even know it’s available for the Boy Scouts, church groups or other people who want to do 

something with the water, the fishing, and so forth.  That’s why the website would be good to do 

something like that.  Mrs. Yerger said we can map it out.  Mr. Johnson explained to Mr. Boyer 

where the property was.  There’s a grassy tractor road that goes into the field. You don’t want to go 

up the gravel road which goes up the hill as the people there don’t want you.  It’s not part of the 

agreement.  Mr. Boyer said he’s not going to go down there right now. 

 

 Mr. Boyer asked about the draft minutes of the EAC meetings being put on the website?  Mrs. 

Yerger said she referred that to Jack and he’s taking that to Council.  He’s going to make a 

consistent rule for all boards, not just the EAC.   

 

XI. ADJOURNMENT 

 

MOTION BY: Mr. Hijazi moved for adjournment.  The time was 8:00 P.M. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Beardsley 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 (Mr. Maxfield & Ms. Ray – Absent) 

 

 

 

____________________________ 

Sandra Yerger, Chair 


